
For any apologies or requests for further information, or to give notice of a question to be 
asked by a member of the public  
Contact:  Mark Nedderman  
Tel: 01270 686459 
E-Mail: mark.nedderman@cheshireeast.gov.uk  

 

Corporate Scrutiny Committee 
 

Agenda 
 

Date: Tuesday, 7th May, 2013 
Time: 2.00 pm 
Venue: Committee Suite 1,2 & 3, Westfields, Middlewich Road, 

Sandbach CW11 1HZ 
 
The agenda is divided into 2 parts. Part 1 is taken in the presence of the public and press. 
Part 2 items will be considered in the absence of the public and press for the reasons 
indicated on the agenda and at the foot of each report. 
 
PART 1 – MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED WITH THE PUBLIC AND PRESS PRESENT 
 
1. Apologies for Absence   
 
 
2. Minutes of Previous meeting  (Pages 1 - 6) 
 
 To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 16 April 2013. 

 
 

3. Declarations of Interest   
 
 To provide an opportunity for Members and Officers to declare any disclosable pecuniary and 

non-pecuniary interests in any item on the agenda. 
 

4. Declaration of Party Whip   
 
 To provide an opportunity for Members to declare the existence of a party whip in relation to 

any item on the agenda. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



5. Public Speaking Time/Open Session   
 
 A total period of 15 minutes is allocated for members of the public to make a statement(s) on 

any matter that falls within the remit of the Committee. 
  
Individual members of the public may speak for up to 5 minutes, but the Chairman will decide 
how the period of time allocated for public speaking will be apportioned, where there are a 
number of speakers. 
 
Note: In order for officers to undertake any background research, it would be helpful if 
members of the public contacted the Scrutiny officer listed at the foot of the agenda, at least 
one working day before the meeting to provide brief details of the matter to be covered.  
 
 

6. Ofsted Inspection  (Pages 7 - 30) 
 
 To consider the report of an Ofsted inspection of local authority arrangements for the 

protection of Children. 
 
To consider the Single Improvement Plan for Children’s Services. 
 
 

7. Work Programme Progress Report  (Pages 31 - 38) 
 
 To consider a report of the Borough Solicitor. 

 



CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the Corporate Scrutiny Committee 
held on Tuesday, 16th April, 2013 at Committee Suite 1,2 & 3, Westfields, 

Middlewich Road, Sandbach CW11 1HZ 
 

PRESENT 
 
Councillor S Wilkinson (Chairman) 
Councillor P Edwards (Vice-Chairman) 
 
Councillors S Corcoran, H Davenport, D Newton, R West, J  Wray and 
A Thwaite (as substitute for Councillor W Fitzgerald) 

 
Apologies 

 
Councillor W Fitzgerald and McCann 
 
ALSO PRESENT 
 
Councillors P Findlow, P Raynes, P Mason and A Moran 
 
OFFICERS PRESENT 
 
Nigel Moorehouse – Head of Early Intervention and Prevention 
Kate Rose – Principle Children’s Safeguarding Manager 
Rachel Musson – Interim Chief Operating Officer 
Steve Reading – Principle Accountant 
Rachel Bolton – Section 106 Officer 
Mark Nedderman – Senior Scrutiny Officer 

 
26 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  

 
RESOLVED - That the minutes of the meeting held on 12 March 2013 be 
confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 

27 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest 
 

28 DECLARATION OF PARTY WHIP  
 
There were no declarations of the existence of a party whip 
 

29 PUBLIC SPEAKING TIME/OPEN SESSION  
 
There were no members of the public present who wished to speak. 
 

30 CHILDREN AND ADULTS SAFEGUARDING ISSUES  
 

Agenda Item 2Page 1



Kate Rose and Nigel Moorehouse attended the meeting and gave a presentation 
on the implications of new statutory guidance for safeguarding children and 
young people and on the work of the safeguarding unit at Cheshire East. 
 

The committee was informed that new guidance entitled ‘Working together to 
safeguard children’ set out how organisations and individuals should work 
together to safeguard and promote the welfare of children and how practitioners 
should conduct the assessment of children. 

 The latest guidance had updated guidance first issued in 1999 which had been 
updated over the intervening years to reflect changes in the philosophical 
approach to safeguarding in response, amongst other things, to such issues as 
the baby P case in Haringey. 
 
The main thrust of the guidance was to place more trust in the professionals 
involved in safeguarding to keep children safe and to avoid over legislating in this 
area. The guidance placed greater emphasis on the independency of other 
agencies as well as the Council in respect of child protection issues. 
 
In response to the guidance, Cheshire East had: 
 

• Transformed social work practice and standards 
• Introduced arrangements for the external review of the Council’s 

safeguarding governance arrangements involving a new panel of 
experts to advise the Local Safeguarding Children Board (LSCB) 

• Appointed an external chair 
• Introduced quarterly reports from the external Chair to the Chief 

executive, Strategic director and Portfolio holder 
• Improved intelligence across agencies to  provide assurance 

regarding effectiveness 
• Piloted new methodology for case reviews 
• Introduced a pan Cheshire child death review panel independent 

The impact of these changes was expected to: 
 

• Move away from target driven practice to child centred assessment 
based upon outcomes 

• Under-pin assessment as continuous process 
• Emphasis on provision of early help to have greatest impact 
• Reaffirm the need for all agencies to provide early help 
• S11 of the Children Act 2004 relating to response to allegations and 

safe practice will work across all organisations 
• A need for a strong challenging role of the Independent Chair of 

LSCB 
• Still with the recognition that how well the various agencies carry 

out their roles there will still be cases where children will be harmed 
or die due to abuse or neglect. 

Page 2



 
In response to a question regarding the mechanisms that were in place to allow 
the various agencies to work together effectively to ensure early intervention, 
many of whom worked in different environments, Nigel Moorhouse explained that 
effective joint working relied upon a number of measures such as the correct 
application of the standards set in the Council’s policies and procedures and 
those of partner organisations and through performance management. He 
explained that the Council would soon be launching a new consultation service 
which would allow individuals to report matters relating to safeguarding of 
children to the Council whilst retaining their right to remain anonymous. 
 
A further question was asked about the arrangements in place to prevent child 
grooming. 
 
Kate rose informed the Committee that the Council had a dedicated team dealing 
with child sexual exploitation, and that extensive work was undertaken with 
schools about safe relationships. 
 
RESOLVED 
 

(a) That the presentation be received; 

 
(b) That the Executive Director for Strategic Commissioning be 

requested to put arrangements in place for reports to be submitted 
to this committee from the independent chair on safeguarding 
issues on an exception basis only, via the children and families 
portfolio holder; 

 
(c) That quarterly reports be submitted to this committee to update 

Members on progress made against the assessment completion 
and quality impact. 

 
31 SECTION 106 PROGRESS REPORT  

 
The committee considered a report of Rachel Bolton the section 106 monitoring 
officer providing an update on the general breakdown of section 106 monies 
currently held by the Council in terms of income and expenditure, together with a 
list of agreements completed. In addition, a spread sheet containing details of 
deposits held by the council as at 21 March 2013 was tabled at the meeting. 
 
Rachel explained the process which allowed local ward members to be involved 
at an early stage in the process and to be invited to pre- application meetings. 
 
In response to a question about what happened to interest accrued to section 
106 monies held on deposit, Rachel informed the committee that this was usually 
covered in the legal agreements, but that where agreements were silent on the 
issue, interest was transferred to the Council’s cash reserves. 
 
Resolved 

Page 3



 
(a) That the report be received; 
(b) That the process by which Local Ward Members are notified of and 

invited to take part in pre application meetings  regarding section 
106 agreements be formalised and all Members be informed of 
the arrangements; 

(c) That electronic versions of the full section 106 spread sheets be 
made available to all Members of the Council to enable 
Councillors to monitor section 106 agreements within their 
respective wards. 

 
32 SCHOOL EXAMINATION DATA  

 
The committee considered the annual education report 2011/12 relating to the 
overall performance of schools (including academies) and settings during 2011-
12 from early years through to post 16. 
 
The report stated that there were 50,119 pupils attending mainstream schools 
and academies, 269 attended the borough’s four special schools and 34 were 
educated at the pupil referral unit. 
 
In 2012, 74% of children in Cheshire East had achieved a good level of 
development by the age of 5 which represented an increase in 6 percentage 
points over the previous year. 
 
The achievement gap between the lowest 20% of pupils and the rest in Cheshire 
East had continued to narrow. In 2012 this was 25% compared to 32% in 2010. 
This was lower than nationally and across the North West and statistical 
neighbours. Cheshire East was ranked third when compared to all local 
authorities. 
 
 Specifically, at key stage 1, Cheshire East was  achieving consistently above 
national averages, and at key stage 2, 85% of pupils achieved level 4+ in English 
and mathematics, a rise of 4 percentage points on last year in primary schools. 
 
In secondary schools, at key stage 3 Cheshire East was consistently above 
national averages. At key stage 4, 61.9 % of pupils achieved 5+A*-C grades. 
However the number of cared for children achieving 5+A*-C grades had dropped 
slightly compared to the previous year. 
 
 The report also indicated that 99.1% of a level students achieved A* to E and 
just under a quarter achieved A*. 
 
In respect of school attendance and exclusions, the report showed that persistent 
absentees had fallen significantly since 2011 in both primary and secondary 
schools. 
 
Resolved 
 
 That the report be received. 
 

Page 4



33 WORK PROGRAMME PROGRESS REPORT  
 
The committee considered a report of the Borough Solicitor regarding the 
2012/2013 work programme. 
The Committee reviewed the schedule attached to the report and recommended 
that the following changes be made: 
 

• Performance Management information be amended to read final outturn 
• Budget Monitoring be amended to read final outturn 
• Review of New management Structure – date for completion April 2014 
• Review of schools and the new Ofsted framework – July 2013 
• Review of Academies and primary schools – July 2013  

 
RESOLVED – That the report be received and the changes listed above 
approved 
 

34 BUDGET SAVINGS  
 
The Committee considered how it would select for specific attention, matters 
within the 2013/14 budget that were considered to be the most sensitive, critical 
and difficult to achieve. 
 
 
The following matters were raised as potential items: 
 

• Cross cutting proposals of -£3.1m – as referred to on page 154 of 
the February 2013 Council budget report.  

 
• The proposal relating to "Rationalise Commissioned Preventative 

Services - VCFS" -£350k in Adults in terms of the impact of the 
reduction as referred to on page 82 of the February 2013  Council 
Budget Report  

 
• The ‘Impact of adjustments in Previous Years’ line on the overview 

(Budget Report - page 4).  
. 
In support of the matters outlined above, the Finance Portfolio holder 
offered to provide a monthly Summary of Financial performance with effect 
from July 2013. 
 
RESOLVED – That the matters listed above be subject to further 
investigation when the committee reviews the final outturn budget and 
performance report in June 2013. 
   

 
 
 

The meeting commenced at 2.00 pm and concluded at 4.35 pm 
 

Councillor S Wilkinson (Chairman) 
 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
 
Inspection of local authority 
arrangements for the protection of 
children 
Cheshire East  

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Inspection dates: 11 March to 20 March 2013 

Lead inspector Mary Varley HMI 

Age group: All 

Agenda Item 6Page 7



 

© Crown copyright 2013 
 
Website: www.ofsted.gov.uk 
This document may be reproduced in whole or in part for non-commercial purposes, provided 
that the information quoted is reproduced without adaptation and the source and date of 
publication are stated. 
 
Further copies of this report are obtainable from the local authority or at www.ofsted.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

Page 8



Inspection of local authority arrangements for the protection of children 
Cheshire East 

 

1 

Contents 

Inspection of local authority arrangements for the protection of 
children  2 

The inspection judgements and what they mean  2 

Overall effectiveness  2 

Areas for improvement  2 

About this inspection 4 

Service information 4 

Overall effectiveness  5 

The effectiveness of the help and protection provided to children, young 
people, families and carers  7 

The quality of practice  10 

Leadership and governance  14 

Record of main findings 17 

 

 
 

Page 9



Inspection of local authority arrangements for the protection of children 
Cheshire East 

 

2 

Inspection of local authority arrangements for 
the protection of children 

The inspection judgements and what they mean 

1. All inspection judgements are made using the following four point scale. 

Outstanding a service that significantly exceeds minimum requirements 

Good a service that exceeds minimum requirements 

Adequate a service that meets minimum requirements 

Inadequate a service that does not meet minimum requirements 

Overall effectiveness  

2. The overall effectiveness of the arrangements to protect children in 
Cheshire East is judged to be inadequate. 

Areas for improvement 

3. In order to improve the quality of help and protection given to children 
and young people in Cheshire East, the local authority and its partners 
should take the following action. 

Immediately: 

 ensure that all contacts and referrals which indicate potential child 
protection concerns, including those arising in relation to child sexual 
exploitation, are appropriately progressed in a timely way 

 ensure that the reasons for all management decisions are clear and 
recorded  

 ensure that appropriate and timely action is taken to investigate child 
protection concerns which emerge whilst children and young people 
are subject to child in need plans 

 ensure that managers at all levels effectively challenge and monitor 
the quality of practice in order to reduce delay. 

  
Within three months: 

 ensure that 
implemented as a matter of priority and functions effectively, and 
incorporates robust data analysis and performance management of 
contact and referral arrangements and workloads  

 

Page 10



Inspection of local authority arrangements for the protection of children 
Cheshire East 

 

3 

 improve the effectiveness of information sharing between multi-
agency risk assessment conference (MARAC) arrangements and 

rrals from MARAC are clearly 
made and that decisions in respect of these are evidenced and 
recorded  

 ensure that children and young people experience a more consistent 
service by reducing the number of changes of social worker that they 
experience 

 ensure that children and 
wishes are incorporated into assessment and planning and that these 
are effectively recorded  

 accelerate plans to ensure that the electronic social care record 
efficiently and effectively supports assessment and planning for 
children and young people 

 develop, implement and evaluate a systematic training programme 
to ensure that all elected members are aware of their safeguarding 
and child protection responsibilities. 

Within six months: 

 ensure that the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment incorporates an 

protection needs and that these are accurately reflected and 
 

 demonstrate that all partner agencies are able to evidence that they 
are fully and effectively engaged in common assessment framework 
(CAF) processes to identify, assess and support vulnerable children 
and young people  

 significantly improve the quality and consistency of child in need 
planning. Specifically to ensure that all children and young people 
have a robust outcome based plan that is regularly reviewed and 
reassessed in the light of changing family circumstances. Ensure that 
children and young people receive regular visits from social workers 
and other professionals in line with the plan and are aware of their 
right to access the services of an independent advocate 

 demonstrate that feedback from children, young people and parents 
is effectively incorporated into service planning and delivery 

 develop, implement and evaluate the impact of an outcome focused 
quality assurance strategy that includes early help, referral 
arrangements and child in need and child protection planning; to 
ensure that this results in consistent and improved standards of 
practice across services 

 

Page 11



Inspection of local authority arrangements for the protection of children 
Cheshire East 

 

4 

 the Cheshire East Safeguarding Children Board to further develop, 
implement and evaluate systems to comprehensively monitor and 
challenge the quality of child protection practice and performance of 
all statutory partners, including robust multi-agency case audit; to 
ensure that this results in measurable improvements to the quality of 
practice.  

 

About this inspection 

4. This inspection was unannounced. 

5. 
child protection system, focusing on the experiences of the child or young 
person, and the effectiveness of the help and protection that they are 
offered. Inspectors have scrutinised case files, observed practice and 
discussed the help and protection given to these children and young 
people with social workers, managers and other professionals including 
members of the Local Safeguarding Children Board. Wherever possible, 
they have talked to children, young people and their families. In addition 
the inspectors have analysed performance data, reports and management 
information that the local authority holds to inform its work with children 
and young people. 

6. This inspection focused on the effectiveness of multi-agency arrangements 
for identifying children who are suffering, or likely to suffer, harm from 
abuse or neglect; and for the provision of early help where it is needed. It 
also considered the effectiveness of the local authority and its partners in 
protecting these children if the risk remains or intensifies. 

7. The inspection team consisted of five of  

8. This inspection was carried out under section 136 of the Education and 
Inspections Act 2006. 

Service information 

9. Cheshire East Council covers a geographical area of 1,116 square 
kilometres. There are approximately 83,400 children and young people 
aged 0-19 years, which is about 23% of the total population. There is one 
nursery school, 124 primary, 21 secondary, four special schools and one 
pupil referral unit. The proportion entitled to free school meals is well 
below the national average, with 11% of primary school children and 9% 
of secondary school children entitled, compared to the national average of 
19% and 16% respectively. 

10. Of the 50,119 children in Cheshire East mainstream schools and 
academies, 91% of primary school and 93% of secondary school children 

Page 12



Inspection of local authority arrangements for the protection of children 
Cheshire East 

 

5 

are of White British origin. The largest ethnic minority group is White 
Other which accounts for 2.5% of the population. Over 100 different first 
languages are recorded for primary and secondary pupils, although the 
proportion of pupils who have a first language other than English is only 
4% of primary pupils and 3% of secondary pupils compared to 17% of 
primary pupils and 13% of secondary pupils nationally. 

11. At the time of the inspection there were 176 children who were the 
subject of a child protection plan and 1558 open child in need cases.  

12. early intervention 
and prevention department. This includes the Cheshire East family service, 
the youth engagement service, which provides targeted youth support, 13 
c centres and four family centres, with an additional three 
outreach sites offering a range of locality based support services. Early 
help is also delivered through a range of partners, including schools and 
health.  

13. 
by the c

assessment team. However, from the end of March 2013 a new integrated 
service door, the Cheshire East consultation service (ChECS), will be in 
place.  

14. Following assessment, children requiring child in need or child protection 
support are supported through one of two child in need and child 
protection teams based in two local offices. Safeguarding and child 
protection services for children with disabilities are provided by a specialist 
disability team.  

 
Overall effectiveness 

Inadequate  

15. The overall effectiveness of the arrangements to protect children in 
Cheshire East is inadequate. Although some examples of good quality 
practice were seen by inspectors across services, the quality of practice 
varied greatly and is judged overall as inadequate. Children, young people 
and their families experience poor recognition of risk, delays and 
inconsistent management decision-making. This increases children and 
young Planning for children and young 
people in need is also inadequate. Once risk is recognised, multi-agency 
child protection services work together adequately to protect children and 
young people. Children and young people in receipt of targeted early 
support receive a prompt and effective service. As a result of the deficits 
above the local authority cannot be confident that front line management 
oversight and decision-making is effective at all po
through services.  

Page 13



Inspection of local authority arrangements for the protection of children 
Cheshire East 

 

6 

16. Examples of inadequate decision-making in respect of contacts and 
referrals were seen during the inspection. In a significant proportion of 
cases not all risks to children and young people were explored and 
referrals were prematurely closed. In other instances there was delay in 
commencing assessments leaving children and young people potentially at 
risk of harm. In the vast majority of these cases a second referral or a 
change of worker had resulted in appropriate action being taken. This 
ensured that risks were assessed and children were protected. At the time 
of the inspection these children and young people were safe. However, in 
a small number of instances information indicating possible child 
protection concerns remained unassessed at the time of the inspection 
and the local authority acted promptly to ensure that assessments were 
undertaken.  

17. Child in need planning is inadequate. Not all children have a plan, many 
plans do not contain clear and achievable aims and they are not robustly 
reviewed. Some children are not regularly visited by the social worker 
overseeing their plan. Inspectors also identified a number of situations 
where although children continued to receive support, child protection 
concerns were not responded to promptly and appropriately and this left 
those children at potential risk of significant harm.  

18. Where children are clearly identified as at risk of immediate harm prompt 
and appropriate action is taken to ensure that risks are thoroughly 
investigated. Multi-agency planning for children subject to child protection 
plans is effective in appropriately reducing risks and parents are well 
engaged in this process. Planning for young people who are identified as 
at risk of child sexual exploitation is robust.  

19. Outcomes for children receiving early help are adequate. Early help is 
accessible, increasingly effective and the common assessment framework 
(CAF) is established. Many children and young people, in particular those 
supported through th , make good progress 
due to well-coordinated and effective support. Concerns are effectively 

child in need or child protection plans end. Multi-agency arrangements to 
monitor the welfare of children and young people missing from home or 
school are robust.  

20. When children are subject to a child protection plan, agencies work well 
together to ensure that they make progress and that risks are 
appropriately reducing. The quality of plans is satisfactory overall and 
there is positive practice in ensuring that children, young people and 

ddressed. This is recognised by parents who are 
clear about what is required of them. Timely reviews are effectively 
chaired by experienced practitioners and offer an appropriate level of 
challenge.  

Page 14



Inspection of local authority arrangements for the protection of children 
Cheshire East 

 

7 

21. Senior leaders in the council have strong corporate and political support 
and demonstrate clear determination to fully engage all statutory partners 
in strategic planning and to secure significant improvements in the quality 
of provision. Systems are in place to monitor performance against national 
indicators and to audit practice but they are not fully effective. 
Weaknesses in contact, referral and assessment arrangements and in 
respect of child in need planning have been recognised and action taken 
to strengthen and replace the provision. However, the extent of the 
deficits identified by this inspection were not fully known and understood 
by senior managers or by the Cheshire East Safeguarding Children Board 
(CESCB).  

22. The senior leadership team has the confidence of elected members, 
partners and front line staff. A culture of challenge and support is 
developing and staff benefit from sound training. Efforts to recruit 
experienced staff are beginning to have a positive impact. Effective 
strategic planning in relation to the early help offer is resulting in a 
suitable range of well-targeted early intervention services. Child protection 
planning is satisfactory and there is a track record of improvement. 
However, the rate of change has been insufficient to ensure that practice 
is of a consistent
journey, or to improve the effectiveness of the electronic social care 
record. Some recommendations from the Safeguarding and Looked After 
Children (SLAC) inspection in June 2011 such as improving the timeliness 

underpin individual planning and service development have not been 
effectively addressed.  

The effectiveness of the help and protection provided to 
children, young people, families and carers  

Adequate  

23. The effectiveness of help and protection provided to children, young 
people, and their families in Cheshire East is adequate.  

24. Outcomes for children and families in receipt of early help are overall 
adequate and there are many examples where children and young 
peoples' lives benefit from the services that they receive. Children and 
young people in receipt of targeted early support receive a responsive 
service. This includes timely referral to social care when concerns about 
their welfare and emerging risk are first identified. Sensitive and focused 
strategic planning has ensured that children and families living in areas of 
highest deprivation have full access to the range of targeted provision. 
This is supported by performance data showing improvement in 
identifying and supporting children and families. Recent re-organisation 
has created an integrated early intervention service and this has enhanced 

Page 15



Inspection of local authority arrangements for the protection of children 
Cheshire East 

 

8 

communication and learning between  
commissioned from other providers. 

25. The CAF process is established and is used effectively in most cases to 
respond swiftly to those children and families who need early help. Family 
service workers based in children  centres and family centres provide 
consistently good support. Child based in the most 
disadvantaged areas are improving the well-being of families through the 
provision of strong multi-professional help to children under five. Lead 
professionals working with the CAF generally have a good understanding 
of the step-up  and step-down  procedures to ensure children receive the 
most appropriate level of support and intervention. Some partner 
agencies, such as health services and secondary schools, have been 
slower to engage with CAF processes, and a number of weaknesses have 
been recognised in the completion of assessments. Better management 
oversight and training have been implemented to address these 
inconsistencies.  

26. Primary and secondary schools receive good guidance, training and 
support from the local authority to address safeguarding and child 
protection concerns. The Safeguarding Children in Education unit (SCiE) 
has been particularly effective in providing targeted work with children 
experiencing family breakdown or trauma. Joint working by partner 
agencies has improved outcomes in, for example, attendance, 
achievement and behaviour of more vulnerable children. Team around the 
family  meetings held in locality areas are working well to ensure a whole 
family approach. The youth offending service and youth engagement team 
effectively provide well planned and timely interventions for young people 
at risk of offending. This is reducing the numbers of young people who 
offend for the first time and who engage in anti-social and risky 
behaviours. 

27. Professionals across all agencies collaborate well to ensure that early help 
and services to protect children recognised as at risk of harm are 
proportionate and appropriate. This includes good partnership working 
with the police through face-to-face multi-agency strategy meetings to 
plan child protection investigations. Child protection conferences and core 
groups are routinely attended by a range of professionals from across the 
partnership and plans consistently identify actions for all members. In the 
majority of cases robust communication and liaison is evident and parents 
spoken with during the inspection confirmed that coordinated planning is 
effective. One parent in receipt of early help 

 

28. In the majority of the cases reviewed during the inspection risks were 
appropriately identified and protective measures had been put in place. 
Once children are recognised as being at risk of potential or actual harm, 
risks are promptly assessed and managed, and where necessary action is 

Page 16



Inspection of local authority arrangements for the protection of children 
Cheshire East 

 

9 

taken to protect children. No children or young people were identified 
where immediate action was needed to protect them from significant 
harm. However, in some cases not all children and young people had their 
need for support or protection immediately recognised. Some referrals 
were prematurely closed and this led to delays in children accessing the 
right level of help.  

29. Some children in receipt of child in need plans had not previously received 
a timely assessment of their needs for protection where emerging 
information indicated that they were at potential risk of harm. These 
delays meant that some children and young people remained without the 
appropriate level of support for a period of time and may not have 
received sufficient opportunity to voice their needs and concerns.  

30. Once young people are recognised as being at risk of sexual exploitation 
multi-agency support to ensure they remain safe is effectively coordinated 
and reviewed. Positive action has also been taken to raise the awareness 
of secondary school pupils of the consequences of risky behaviours and 
the importance of keeping safe. The missing from home and child sexual 
exploitation sub-group works effectively with key partner agencies, 
including the police and commissioned services, to ensure that when 
young people are missing action is promptly taken, including tracking their 
whereabouts and the provisions of support following their return home. 
The services of an advocate are available if this is requested. Inspectors 
also saw some effective joint working in response to situations in which 
children were living with domestic violence.  

31. The number of known privately fostered children is very low and the 
CESCB are aware of the need to accelerate action to ensure that all 
agencies are aware of and exercise their responsibilities for privately 
fostered children.  

32. Child protection processes are applied in a timely way and child protection 
enquiries  
Child protection planning demonstrates that agencies collaborate 
effectively, risks reduce appropriately and consequently 
development and welfare is enhanced. Action to improve children and 

collective multi-agency report shared with parents prior to review 
conferences has strengthened information sharing. Parents spoken with 
value the support offered by social workers and all agencies. They 
understood why a child protection plan was in place, what they needed to 
do to make improvements and the consequences of non-compliance.  

33. Reviews of child protection plans are timely and challenging which ensures 
that drift is minimised and plans are effectively monitored and progressed. 
There is no evidence that children and young people are unnecessarily 
subject to child protection processes. Decisions taken to end plans are 

Page 17



Inspection of local authority arrangements for the protection of children 
Cheshire East 

 

10 

appropriate 

people, their services are then effectively coordinated by a child in need 
plan. 

34. All parents spoken with during this inspection felt that they are being 
effectively helped. They understood the nature of the support provided 
and are supported to participate fully within all meetings and plans. This 
was identified as an area of strength across the local authority, both 
within social care and within the targeted services providing early help. 
However, some parents receiving a social care service are unhappy with 
frequent changes of social worker. They are also frustrated when last 
minute changes are made to care plans and by some delays in responding 

  

35. There are some good examples of workers seeking to fully understand the 

many case records do not include comments about the 
feelings and this lack of recording undermines the level of child-focused 
practice that staff described as taking place.  

36. The degree to which children and young people receive a service that is 
responsive to their ethnicity, culture, religion, language or disability is 
variable. Within targeted services families newly arrived in the United 
Kingdom 

within social care assessments and its potential impact is explored in some 
instances. However, case records do not demonstrate that subsequent 
planning is ethnically and culturally responsive. Translation and 
interpreting services are used to good effect to enable children and their 
families to be fully engaged in planning. T  
makes e
including those associated with their disability, informs decision-making.  

 
The quality of practice     

Inadequate 

37. The quality of practice is inadequate. Decision-making on first contact with 

commenced was insufficiently robust to identify all potential risk. The 
quality of child in need planning is inadequate. Inspectors found that in a 
significant number of cases risks were unassessed at the point of referral, 
leaving children and young people at potential risk of harm. Children 
receiving early help are supported well and child protection planning is 
adequate. Although the quality of practice is too variable overall, 
inspectors saw individual examples of good child-centred planning. 

Page 18



Inspection of local authority arrangements for the protection of children 
Cheshire East 

 

11 

38. Thresholds for access to services are clear but are not fully understood by 
all partners. The quality of referrals from partner agencies is variable. 
Some effectively demonstrate sound understanding of thresholds and 
clearly identify concerns and needs but others omit key information, 
including, for example, details of the children being referred, which 
creates additional pressure of work for contact and referral services.  

39. . 
This inspection found a significant number of cases that were prematurely 
closed before information indicating possible risk of harm was explored, 
including examples of young people who may have been at risk of sexual 
exploitation. In some cases information that identified potential child 
protection concerns was not made subject to further enquiries in 
accordance with child protection procedures. In other instances, it was 
only following a subsequent referral that the child protection concerns 
previously identified were swiftly acted upon. At the point of the 
inspection a small number of cases were identified where 
and potential risks had not been assessed and the council acted promptly 
to ensure that these were followed up and identified.  

40. Historical information is not routinely taken into account in reaching initial 
decisions concerning referrals and records do not consistently show that 
the necessary checks have been made. Information sharing and referral 
arrangements between MARAC and clear, 
particularly in distinguishing between information that requires action and 
information that does not. The MARAC information held within children  
services is not subject to robust management oversight.  

41. Inspectors found that in the majority of cases the response to children 
and young people identified as at immediate risk of harm is prompt and 
effective. However, a small number of child protection enquiries were not 
progressed in a sufficiently timely way. In other cases referred to senior 
managers by inspectors, the council was unable to demonstrate the 
rationale for decisions made. Strategy discussions are routinely held and 
are well attended. Child protection enquiries are all undertaken by 
qualified social workers. Assessments completed as part of child protection 
enquiries are satisfactory; they effectively identify risks and strengths and 

 
Most records clearly identify findings in relation to significant harm. In the 
cases reviewed during the inspection enquiries appropriately progressed to 
child protection conferences. 

42. The quality of assessments is adequate overall. CAF assessments 
completed by family service workers are of a consistently good standard. 
They 
objectives and realistic goals. Others are more variable in the extent to 
which they clearly identify needs. There is a similar mixed picture within 
assessments completed in l care. A proportion of these 

Page 19



Inspection of local authority arrangements for the protection of children 
Cheshire East 

 

12 

clearly analyse needs and risks while others contain limited information 
and the standard of analysis is weak.  

43. The timeliness of the completion of assessments is below the local 
 for improvement. Inspectors saw some that 

resulted in a timely offer of help or protection to children and their 
families. However in other cases, unacceptable delays occurred in 
completing assessments, including those undertaken as part of child 
protection enquiries, private fostering arrangements and assessments of 
young people at potential risk of sexual exploitation.  

44. In those cases reviewed 
help services was of a consistently high standard. Plans are 
comprehensive, outcome focused and are regularly reviewed. Children 
receive sensitive direct work and risks, including those from domestic 
abuse, are appropriately addressed. The quality of multi-agency 
engagement and support, including from youth offending, health and 
adult services, is good. In particular the support from SCiE is of a 
consistently high standard. Arrangements for de-escalating child in need 
plans to a lower level of need are appropriate. 

45. Planning for children in need is inadequate. In some complex child in need 
cases, where allegations of harm were made or child protection concerns 
emerged, these were not effectively investigated. In others there was 
delay before the severity of the issues was recognised and the appropriate 
action was taken. In the cases seen several children did not have plans in 
place. Too few plans set clear and achievable objectives and outcomes. 
However, there are some examples of good practice and more recent 
plans are comprehensive and reflect positive multi-agency working. The 
arrangements for reviewing plans are not sufficiently robust or supported 
by effective joint working. The local authority is aware of this and has 
plans in place to review plans more rigorously.  

46. The regularity of social work visits to children subject to child in need 
plans is variable, with significant gaps in their frequency in a number of 
cases. Recording does not consistently identify whether the child or young 
person was seen or spoken to alone. A number of children and young 
people experience frequent changes of social worker over a relatively 
short period of time. Not all indications of escalating stress in a family 
result in a timely visit to explore the issues. Despite these significant 
weaknesses there are examples of positive practice where children are 
seen alone and observations of their presentation and views. Inspectors 
identified some effective multi-agency working to support you
development and to enhance the social involvement of disabled children 
with their peers. Although children in need have access to independent 
advocates not all children are made aware of this service.  

Page 20



Inspection of local authority arrangements for the protection of children 
Cheshire East 

 

13 

47. Child protection planning is adequate and plans are of variable quality. 
Some identify clear objectives but others lack detail and do not always set 
out the consequences if change is not forthcoming. Core group meetings 
are regular and well attended. In most cases children subject to child 
protection plans are seen and seen alone where appropriate, but in a very 
small number of cases children are not seen within established timescales 
and attempts to make contact with them are insufficiently robust. There 

seeking to include their voice within the child protection planning process.  

48. Sustained improvements have been made in the timeliness of child 
protection reviews. Social workers  reports for child protection conferences 
seen by inspectors were detailed and underpinned by robust analysis. 
Recommendations were appropriate and had been shared with the parent 
in advance. Conference reports are written in a way that makes them 
accessible to parents and this is good practice. Conferences observed 
during the inspection were well managed and provided effective 
challenge. The progress of plans was effectively reviewed and parents 
were supported to fully participate and contribute. The arrangements for 
agreeing the venue of conferences appropriately takes into account 

  

49. Front line management oversight and decision-
child protection and child in need services is variable. It is poor overall in 
identifying and managing and in 
the oversight of some child in need work. However, oversight of children 
subject to child protection plans is satisfactory. Most front line social 
workers receive regular supervision. They report that supervision generally 
helps them direct their work and that managers understand their 
strengths and weaknesses. The quality of supervision files is satisfactory 
overall. The majority are in good order and auditing was seen to have 
been undertaken on most files. However, recording is action focused and 
does not consistently demonstrate that critical reflection has taken place.  

50. Although most records are up-to-date, the quality and timeliness of case 
recording is variable. The current electronic system does not support the 
effective management or retrieval of information and managers had 
considerable difficulty in locating key documents. Some case records lack 

contained a chronology which provided sufficient detail to ensure an 
overview of key historical factors, it was not always clear how these are 
used to inform assessments and planning for children and young people.  

  

Page 21



Inspection of local authority arrangements for the protection of children 
Cheshire East 

 

14 

Leadership and governance  

Adequate  

51. Leadership and governance are adequate. Early help and child protection 
priorities are clearly defined and shared by strategic leaders across the 
partnership. However, whilst agencies are committed to partnership 
working, its impact on strategic and front line working is variable. 
Strategic planning across the partnership effectively targets identified gaps 
in provision. For example, domestic abuse perpetrators not subject to 
statutory programmes now have access to a service that challenges them 
to change and partners are well engaged in the development of the new 
Cheshire East consultation service (ChECS).  

52. Recent accelerated action to improve strategic partnership working with 
local health bodies is resulting in some positive outcomes. For instance, 
health commissioners have incorporated performance in relation to early 
help and CAF outcomes into all provider contracts. Good progress has 
been made in commissioning early help services from a range of voluntary 
and community sector providers and this includes some examples of 
collaborative commissioning. However, senior managers recognise that 
joint commissioning is under developed and that the Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment and the Health and Well-Being Strategy do not effectively 
incorporate analysis of protection.  

53. Senior leaders are ambitious; they are committed to delivering high quality 
services to ensure children are helped and protected and are developing a 
culture of supportive challenge. Accelerating the rate of change is now a 
key priority. There is evidence that this has gathered momentum in recent 
months. The senior leadership team has a clear understanding of many of 
the strengths and weaknesses of provision and have taken action to make 
improvements. For example, the new Cheshire East consultation service 
(ChECS) is due to be imminently introduced and will offer one entry point 

 However, senior 
managers had not accelerated plans sufficiently at the time of the 
inspection to ensure that contact and referral practice was effective. This 
was recognised and action was commenced during the inspection to 
address this. Leadership is active and visible but it is not yet fully effective. 
The council acknowledges that in some aspects the rate of improvement 
across the partnership has been slow. For example, ensuring that referrals 

progress in replacing 
the electronic social care record and in improving the timeliness of 
assessments, which was a recommendation from the SLAC inspection in 
June 2011.  

54. 
Board, the Health and Well-Being Board and the CESCB are clearly 
understood by all partners. Senior managers have strong political and 

Page 22



Inspection of local authority arrangements for the protection of children 
Cheshire East 

 

15 

corporate support from the Leader of the Council and the Chief Executive. 
The council accords a high priority to child protection and this is 
appropriately . Resources 
for front line practice have been preserved in the light of financial 
stringency. A recently appointed Lead Member is well supported and is 
becoming informed through regular meetings with senior council officers. 
Front line staff appreciate the interest shown in their work through visits 
by the Leader and Lead Member to their teams. Appropriate scrutiny 
arrangements are in place. These are newly revised so it is too early to 
demonstrate their impact. Work is still required to ensure the wider group 
of elected members are well informed of and trained in relation to their 
safeguarding responsibilities. 

55. CESCB membership and attendance reflect statutory requirements. 
Governance arrangements are satisfactory and kept under review. There 
is suitable evidence of the CESCB improving the quality of child protection 
across the system. An example is the positive multi-disciplinary approach 
taken to impact on child sexual exploitation, missing children and gangs. 
Similarly the recent appointment of a Chair to cover both Children and 
Adult Safeguarding Boards facilitates the strategic priority to develop a 

. Performance monitoring and internal challenge have 
had some positive results, such as an increase in the number of reports 
from GPs presented to initial child protection conferences. However, multi-
agency case auditing and the range and use made of performance data 
are underdeveloped. As a result the CESCB has not impacted sufficiently 
to improve practice in key areas such as 
and child in need planning. The CESCB does not have a high profile 
amongst front line staff although clear and useful executive summaries 
are made available following each board meeting. 

56. Performance management is inconsistent due to a lack of timely impact in 
effectively tackling known areas of poor practice within contact and 
referral arrangements and child in need planning. In particular, 
arrangements to audit and monitor decision-making at the point of referral 
did not identify the scale of the inconsistencies in practice and 
management. In other aspects, senior leaders have improved the accuracy 
and robustness of performance information and have introduced a quality 
assurance framework. However, it is recognised that there is still some 
way to go to comprehensively embed this and ensure that it is consistently 
used by managers across the service. Performance management is 
effective in some areas, for example, child protection trends and 
performance are soundly monitored and reported and this has led to 
improvement in the timeliness of reviews. 

57. Systematic auditing of the quality of CAF assessments is evaluative and 
challenging and has helped to drive up standards. Managers at all levels 
within undertake regular thematic audits and have a 
good understanding of their importance. A basic audit tool is in place and 

Page 23



Inspection of local authority arrangements for the protection of children 
Cheshire East 

 

16 

further improvements are planned to enhance the rigour with which audits 
are undertaken. There is good evidence that weaknesses highlighted 
through audit are individually identified to staff although there is variability 
in how well these are used by front line managers to improve subsequent 
practice. Outcomes of audit are appropriately reported to senior managers 
and the CESCB and are incorporated in improvement activity.  

58. The council has taken appropriate action to address workforce challenges 
within front line social care teams such as increasing staffing levels in the 

. A comprehensive recruitment and retention 
package, although at an early stage of implementation, is demonstrating 
impact in reducing the use of temporary staff and in increasing the 
number of experience social workers. Senior managers have suitable plans 
in place to sustain this improvement. Appropriate progress is being made 
to reduce sickness levels and to successfully tackle capability issues within 

. The workforce is reflective of local non-white 
minority groups and a sound plan is in place to enable white minority 
ethnic staff to obtain professional social work qualifications. A caseload 
management system has recently been introduced and there is evidence 
of caseloads decreasing. However some workers, including newly qualified 
social workers (NQSW), have demanding caseloads given the complexity 
of much of the work. Nevertheless the majority of staff, including NQSW, 
report that they are well supported.  

59. Staff at all levels are motivated, have confidence in the senior leadership 
team and feel supported and challenged to improve their practice. They 
have access to an extensive range of single and multi-agency learning and 
development opportunities and can explain the benefits of these. Good 
advice is available to partner agencies to help them develop child 
protection training. However, the councils recent mock inspection  and 
thematic audits indicate that some basic practice issues have not been 
successfully addressed through training. The lessons learned as a result of 
serious case reviews and multi-agency case reviews are appropriately 
disseminated across the partner agencies. Learning from complaints is 
satisfactory and is being used to improve practice. For example, this led to 
the strengthening of systems to distribute minutes of child protection 
conferences to parents.  

60. The council recognises that action to ensure that children and young 
 remains underdeveloped. 

This is receiving on-going attention, for example through work undertaken 
in conjunction with the Adult Safeguarding Board to identify good practice 
in this area and the inclusion of young people in recruitment. However, 
more remains to be done to collect and collate service users  views about 

 

 

Page 24



Inspection of local authority arrangements for the protection of children 
Cheshire East 

 

17 

Record of main findings 

Local authority arrangements for the protection of children 

Overall effectiveness Inadequate 

The effectiveness of the help and protection 
provided to children, young people, families and 
carers 

Adequate 

The quality of practice Inadequate 

Leadership and governance Adequate 

 

Page 25



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



   

1 
Single Improvement Plan – Draft April 2013 

SINGLE IMPROVEMENT PLAN – CHALLENGE AND IMPACT   MARCH - OCTOBER 2013 

OUTCOME SOURCE OF ISSUE ACTION DATE FOR 
COMPLETION 

LEAD 
RESPONSIBILITY  

SUCCESS INDICATORS EVIDENCE AND VALIDATION CHECK 

1.1 Carry out a major audit of all case files June 2013 Vicky Buchanan, CEC 
 

1.2 Review all Children in Need and Child Protection policies 
and procedures to ensure compliance with ‘Working 
Together’ 2013 and best practice  

August 2013 Helen Brookes, CEC 

1.3 Produce development programme which transforms social 
work practice and includes specific training for frontline 
Social Workers 

July 2013 Vicky Buchanan, CEC 

1.4 Deliver quarterly quality and performance review ‘practice 
workshops’  

From April 2013 Vicky Buchanan, CEC 
 

1.5 Roll out performance management training for all managers July 2013 Sue Atkinson, CEC 

1.6 Initiate full tender on procurement of the new case 
management system 

June 2013 Angharad Jackson, CEC 

1.7 Procure and arrange training for Social Workers on new IT 
equipment 

May 2013 Annas Feeney, CEC 

1.8 Complete service realignment to reduce changes in Social 
Workers 

October 2013  Nigel Moorhouse, CEC 

1.9 Implement revised Supervision Policy and Procedures May 2013 Annas Feeney, CEC 

1.10 Establish a ‘Transforming Social Work Practice’ Group to 
develop, implement, monitor and report on improvements 
and impact in social work practice 

May 2013 Nigel Moorhouse, CEC 

1.11 Introduce Independent Reviews of Children in Need 
practice 

June 2013 Kate Rose, CEC 

1.12 Develop a Social Work charter – the expected standards for 
social care in Cheshire East 

August 2013 Vicky Buchanan, CEC 

1.13 Identify and support the roll out of ‘Practice champions’ to 
drive good practice within social work teams 

May 2013 Vicky Buchanan, CEC 

1.14 Revise the complaints, compliments and suggestions 
process for social care to better inform service 
improvement 

June 2013 Jill Greenwood, CEC 

1.15 Identify methods of engagement for each service area to 
consult and engage children, young people and parents in 
service development and implement system to record and 
measure impact 

September 2013 Nigel Moorhouse, CEC 

1.16 Audit supervision files October 2013 Sue Atkinson, CEC 

1. Front line social work 
practice is consistently 
good and effective 
 

• Ofsted Report 
• Peer Review 
• LA Inspections 
• Working 

Together, 2013 
• Mock Inspection 

(Jan 2013) 
 

1.17 Undertake a multi-agency ‘mock inspection’ to check    
improvement 

November 2013 Nigel Moorhouse, CEC 

• Good outcomes from Ofsted and ‘mock 
inspections’, particularly ‘quality of practice’ 
judgements evidencing effectiveness 

• Number of cases where decisions are made 
within 1 working day of referral  

• Number of cases taking 35 working days or 
less from the date of referral to the date of 
a decision on the next steps 

• Children and young people experience a 
reduction in the number of Social Workers 
they have 

• Reduction in caseload of average Social 
Worker 

• Improved quality and consistency of 
Children in Need planning 

• Reduction in sickness rates, use of Agency 
Social Workers, staff vacancies and turnover 
in Social Care 

• All management decisions clear and 
recorded 

• All children and young people have outcome 
based plans that are regularly reviewed and 
reassessed 

• Electronic case management system 
effectively supports assessment and 
planning 

• Evidence that children, young people and 
parents are engaged in service development 

• Reduction in the time children are subject to 
a child protection plan 

• Improvement in the quality and timelines of 
assessments 

• Improved quality of assessments evidenced 
through audit 

• Where placement is required, more children 
and young people are placed locally 

• Reduction in complaints 
• Social Worker attendance and participation 

at practice workshops 
• Analysis shows the ‘right’ children are in 

care 
• Staff report sufficient capacity, support and 

• Reports to Social Care Management 
Team 

• Audit Reports to SLT 
• Supervision audits 
• Ofsted and Mock Inspection Reports  
• Revised policies and procedures 
• Staff surveys 
• Reports on recruitment and 

retention  
 

P
age 27



   

2 
Single Improvement Plan – Draft April 2013 

tools to be effective in their roles 
 

2.1 Establish an Improvement Board to develop, implement, 
monitor and report on improvements and impact of the 
Single Improvement Plan 

May 2013 Tony Crane, CEC 

2.2 Further develop, implement and evaluate systems to 
comprehensively monitor and challenge the quality of child 
protection practice and performance of all statutory 
partners, including robust multi-agency case audit. 

July 2013 Sean Reynolds, LSCB 
Chair 
Fintan Bradley, CEC 

2.3 Develop, implement and evaluate the impact of an 
outcome focused quality assurance strategy that includes 
early help, referral arrangements and child in need and 
child protection planning 

July 2013 Tony Crane, CEC 

2.4 Annual safeguarding report to Scrutiny and/or Policy 
Development Group 

June 2013 Sean Reynolds, LSCB 
Chair 
Kate Rose, CEC 

2.5 Develop, implement and evaluate a systematic training 
programme to ensure that all elected members are aware 
of their safeguarding and child protection responsibilities 

June 2013 Vicky Buchanan, CEC 

2.6 Develop commissioning and procurement plans for 
children’s services 

July 2013 Lucia Scally, CEC 

2.7 Agree a consistent approach to evidencing outcomes and 
impact in practice and disseminate widely through partner 
organisations 

June 2013 Tony Crane 

2.8 Undertake a comprehensive self evaluation of the LSCB  June 2013 Sean Reynolds, LSCB 
Chair 

2. The quality and 
impact of practice is 
measurably improved 
across Cheshire East 
through effective 
communication, 
challenge and scrutiny 
from the LSCB, 
Children’s Trust, Senior 
Managers and 
Members  

 

• Ofsted Report 
• Peer Review 
• Working 

Together, 2013 

2.9 Develop a local LSCB framework for learning and 
improvement 

July 2013 Sean Reynolds, LSCB 
Chair 

• Improved Ofsted judgement 
• Evidence of LSCB members challenging 

performance  
• Better management information across 

Cheshire East to inform decision making  
• Quality Assurance Strategy demonstrating 

impact 
• All elected Members are aware of their 

safeguarding and child protection 
responsibilities 
 

• Reports to LSCB 
• Reports to Children’s Trust 
• Reports to Scrutiny and Policy 

Development Group 
• LSCB Performance Management 

Sub-group 
• Reports to the Improvement Board 

 

3.1  Re-commission Advocacy and Participation contract to 
focus on voice of the child, including independent visitors 
and extending beyond cared for children 

 
 

October 2013 Alison Ellison, CEC 3. The voice of the child 
is fully embedded in 
service planning and 
delivery 
 
 

• Ofsted Report 
• Peer Review 
• Audit Reports 
• Mock Inspection 

3.2 Report quarterly to LSCB and Children’s Trust on 
engagement and impact of children and young people 
views in service development 

July 2013 All partners 

• All children and young people’s experiences, 
view and wishes are incorporated into 
assessment and planning and effectively 
recorded. 

• Evidence in recording that child has been 
seen alone. 

• Evidence that children and young people 
have been offered and, if appropriate, have 
used the Advocacy Service 

• Increased attendance of children at reviews 
and key meetings 

• Attendance of children and young people at 
Corporate Parenting Group  

• Evidence that children and young people are 
engaged in service development 

• Children in Care Council membership and 
involvement in service improvement 

• Audit Reports to SLT 
• Quarterly reports to SLT on children 

and young people’s engagement 
• Report to Children’s Trust 
• LSCB training sub-group 
• Quarterly Complaints Report 

P
age 28



   

3 
Single Improvement Plan – Draft April 2013 

• Reduction in complaints from children and 
young people 

4.1 Establish policy, procedures and systems for the new 
Cheshire East Consultation Service (ChECS), including 
arrangements for sharing information from MARAC 

April 2013 Vicky Buchanan, CEC 

4.2 Communicate launch of ChECS to all partners and staff April 2013 Vicky Buchanan, CEC 

4.3 Set up a system to ensure that outcomes of referrals to 
social care are promptly notified to referring agencies 

April 2013 Vicky Buchanan, CEC 

4.4 Establish robust data analysis and performance monitoring 
system, including monitor of new referrals and incorporate 
into reports to Children’s Trust/LSCB/Health & Wellbeing 
Board 

April 2013 Vicky Buchanan, CEC 

4. There is an effective 
‘front door’ in place to 
services for children 
and families.  Staff in all 
agencies have a clear 
understanding of levels 
of need to provide the 
right response at the 
right time 
 

• Ofsted Report 
• Peer Review 
• Children and 

Families Report 
Card 

• Social Care and 
Family Service 
Review 

• Mock Inspection, 
Jan 2013 

4.5 Each agency to ensure a system is in place to monitor their 
referrals to Social Care, including being appropriately 
flagged on their case management systems 

June 2013 All partners 

• New service up and running 
• Reduction in referrals to social care resulting 

in no further action 
• Increase in multi-agency CAFs 
• Number of cases where decisions are made 

within 1 working day of referral  
• Number of cases taking 35 working days or 

less from the date of referral to the date of a 
decision on the next steps 
 

• Audit Reports to SLT 
• Reports on inappropriate referrals 

to Children’s Trust/LSCB/Health & 
Wellbeing Board  
 

 

5.1 Publish a threshold document that includes the process for 
the early help assessment and the type and level of early 
help services to be provided; and the criteria, including the 
level of need, for when a case should be referred. 

July 2013 Tim Newton, CEC 

5.2 Develop single organisational reports around: 
• Early Help offer 
• Analysis of use of CAF, Lead Professional 
• Contribution to improving outcomes 
• Quality assurance   

 

June 2013 All partners 

5. There is effective 
multi-agency delivery 
of Early Help  
 

• Ofsted Report 
• Peer Review 
• Quarterly CAF 

returns 
• Working 

Together, 2013 
 

5.3 Produce quarterly reports on multi-agency early help 
activity, including evidence that all partners are fully 
engaged in CAF    
 

July 2013 Tony Crane, CEC 

• Increase in multi-agency CAFs 
• Reduction in inappropriate referrals to Social 

Care (ie, those resulting in no further action) 
• Attendance at multi-agency early help 

training 
• New contracts in place for early help 

providers 
• Children and young people’s portal of JSNA 

developed 
• Integrated Early Years Pathway specified and 

implemented 

• Audit Reports to SLT 
• Report to Children’s Trust re 

implementation of Early Help action 
plan 

• Quarterly CAF report  
• Threshold document 
 

6.1 Ensure that the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 
incorporates an analysis of children and young people’s 
safeguarding and child protection needs and that these are 
accurately reflected and prioritised in the local area’s joint 
Health and Well Being Strategy 

June 2013 Lorrraine Butcher, CEC  6. Partners, in 
particular Health, 
commit to change 
 

• Ofsted Report 
• Peer Review 

6.2 Partners to ensure that children feature strongly within 
their respective organisational plans 

 

May 2013 All partners 

• Reduction in referrals to social care resulting 
in no further action 

• Increase in multi-agency CAFs 
• Implementation plan for Health and 

Wellbeing Strategy 

• Reports to Health and Wellbeing 
Board 

• Reports to Children’s Trust 
• Single organisational plans 

 

 

 

P
age 29



P
age 30

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Version 1 April 2009 (SH) 

.CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL 
 

REPORT TO:  CORPORATE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Date of Meeting: 

 
7 May 2013 

Report of: Interim Borough Solicitor 
Subject/Title: Work Programme update 
___________________________________                                                                       
 
 
1.0 Report Summary 
 
1.1 To review items in the 2012/2013 Work Programme listed in the schedule 

attached, together with any other items suggested by Committee Members. 
 
2.0 Recommendations 
 
 That the 2012/2013 work programme be reviewed. 
 
3.0 Reasons for Recommendations 
 
3.1 It is good practice to agree and review the Work Programme to enable effective  
           management of the Committee’s business. 
 
4.0 Wards Affected 
 
4.1 All 
 
5.0 Local Ward Members  
 
5.1 Not applicable. 
 
6.0 Policy Implications including - Carbon reduction  
                                                              - Health 
 
 
6.1 Not known at this stage. 
 
 
7.0 Financial Implications  
 
7.1 Not known at this stage. 
 
8.0 Legal Implications  
 
8.1 None. 
 
9.0 Risk Management  

Agenda Item 7Page 31



Version 1 April 2009 (SH) 

 
9.1 There are no identifiable risks. 
 
10.0 Background and Options 
 
10.1 The schedule attached has been updated to reflect the decisions taken by the 

Committee at its previous meeting. 
 
10.2 Members are asked to review the schedule attached to this report, and if 

appropriate, add new items or delete items that no longer require any scrutiny 
activity. When selecting potential topics, Members should have regard to the 
Council’s new three year plan and also to the general criteria listed below, 
which should be applied to all potential items when considering whether any 
Scrutiny activity is appropriate. 

 
 The following questions should be asked in respect of each potential work 

programme item: 
 

• Does the issue fall within a corporate priority; 
 

• Is the issue of key interest to the public; 
 

• Does the matter relate to a poor or declining performing service for 
which there is no obvious explanation;  

 
• Is there a pattern of budgetary overspends;  

 
• Is it a matter raised by external audit management letters and or audit 

reports? 
 

• Is there a high level of dissatisfaction with the service; 
 
10.3 If during the assessment process any of the following emerge, then 

the topic should be rejected: 
 

• The topic is already being addressed elsewhere 
 

• The matter is subjudice 
 

• Scrutiny cannot add value or is unlikely to be able to conclude an 
investigation within the specified timescale 

 
 

 
 
11 Access to Information 
 

                           The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by contacting  
                           the report writer: 

 

Page 32



Version 1 April 2009 (SH) 

 
 
 
 Name:           Mark Nedderman 
 Designation: Senior Scrutiny Officer 

           Tel No:         01270 686459 
            Email:         mark.nedderman@cheshireeast.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

  

Page 33



Page 34

This page is intentionally left blank



Committee/Corporate/meetings/ /workprogramme 7 May 2013 

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 16 April 2013     
 

Issue Description/Comments Suggested 
by 

Portfolio 
Holder as at 
February 
2013 

Current 
Position R,A,G 

Date for 
completion 

Children and 
Adults 
Safeguarding 
issues 

Standard agenda item to 
receive updates 

The 
Committee 

Children’s and 
families and 
Health and Adult 
Social care 

Standard item 
to be 
introduced from 
April 2013 

16 April 2013 
and 
continuing 

Ofsted 
Inspection 

To review the findings of the 
Ofsted Inspection March 
2013 

The 
Committee 

Children’s and 
Families 

Item on today’s 
agenda. 

7 May 2013 

Regulation 33 
update 
 

To receive periodic reports 
on Section 33 visits to 
Children’s establishments. 

Handover 
from 
Previous 
Scrutiny 

Children and 
Families 

To be received 
quarterly 

7 May 2013 

Final Outturn 
 

To be received at least 
quarterly 

Handover 
from 
Previous 
Scrutiny 

Performance Third quarter 
reviewed by 
Committee on 
10 January 
2013 

11 June 2013 

Final Outturn 
 

To be undertaken at least 
quarterly 

Handover 
from 
Previous 
Scrutiny 

Finance Third quarter 
reviewed by 
Committee on 
10 January 
2013 

11 June 2013 

Budget 
Consultation 

To determine the 
Committees involvement in 
budget consultation 

Handover 
from 
Previous 

Finance Further 
information to 
be provided by 

September 
2013 

P
age 35



Committee/Corporate/meetings/ /workprogramme 7 May 2013 

arrangements in accordance 
with constitutional 
requirements  

Scrutiny  the Finance 
Portfolio Holder 
on specific 
consultation 
arrangements 

Schools and the 
new Ofsted 
framework 

To review the impact on 
schools of the new 
framework 

The 
Committee 

Children’s and 
Families 

 9 July 2013 

Academies and 
Primary schools 

To review the impact on 
primary schools 

The 
Committee 

Children’s and 
Families 

 9 July 2013 

Section 106 
Agreements 

To receive progress reports 
on monies owing/spent 
 

Handover 
from 
Previous 
Scrutiny 

Strategic 
Communities 

6 monthly review. 8 October 
2013 

Residential 
Provision Task 
and Finish 
Review -update 

Review actions of Cabinet in 
response to the scrutiny 
review 

Handover 
from 
Previous 
Scrutiny 

Children and 
families 

Further 
information to 
be obtained 
about the 
scheduling of 
this item 

8 October 
2013 

New 
management 
Structure 

To review the effectiveness 
of the new management 
structure approved in 
February 2013 

The 
Committee 

All Portfolios The new 
structure is 
expected to be 
completed by 
the Autumn of 
2013  

April 2014 

Libraries 
Strategy  

6 month review - to review 
the success of the strategy 
following its implementation 
in August. 
 

Handover 
from 
Previous 
Scrutiny 

Strategic 
Communities 

To be held in 
abeyance until 
after the current 
review of the 
Libraries 

TBA 

P
age 36



Committee/Corporate/meetings/ /workprogramme 7 May 2013 

Strategy led by 
the 
Communities 
PDG 

School 
Examination 
data 2012/13 
 

To review the annual school 
examination data 

Handover 
from 
Previous 
Scrutiny  

Children and  
Families 

 TBA 

Home to School 
Transport Task 
and Finish -
update 

Review actions of Cabinet in 
response to the scrutiny 
review 

Handover 
from 
Previous 
Scrutiny 

Children and 
Families 

Further 
information to 
be obtained 
about the 
scheduling of 
this item  

TBA 

Business 
Generation 
Centres update 

Review actions of Cabinet in 
response to the scrutiny 
review 

Handover 
from 
Previous 
Scrutiny 

Prosperity and 
Economic 
Regeneration 

Further 
information to 
be obtained 
about the 
scheduling of 
this item 

TBA 

BeWilderwood To review the financing 
arrangements of this 
scheme 

The 
Committee 

Prosperity  TBA 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

P
age 37



P
age 38

T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of Previous meeting
	6 Ofsted Inspection
	Single improvement plan - 29 April 2013

	7 Work Programme Progress Report
	Workprogramme7 May 13


